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Deer Island has a long and diverse history

as one of the gateway islands to Boston

Harbor. At various times in its past,

Deer Island has been home to Native Americans,

quarantined immigrants, criminals, orphans,

paupers and military personnel. Now a peninsula

connected to Winthrop by a strip of land at Point

Shirley, this 210-acre "island" is playing a vital

role in the Boston Harbor Project, as the site of the

Massachusetts Water Resources Authority's new

wastewater treatment plant for Greater Boston.

With its new landmark egg digesters, Deer Island

stands out among Boston Harbor's historic islands.

"DEARE ILA:\'DE"
In 1634, four years after the city of Boston was

founded, a writer described a place known as
"Deare Ilande, so-called because of the Deare
which often swimme hither from Maine [main­

land]. when they are chased by Wolves." At the
time, Deer Island was covered with high forests
and grassy glades, freshwater ponds, swamps and
thickets. Tall bluffs lined the island to the north,

east and south and the edge of the island was
extended by broad tidal flats. On the west, a strait
known as Shirley Gut separated Deer Island from
Winthrop at Point Shirley.

Shirley Gut was reported to be navigable as
late as 1895. By 1930, however, the depth of the
water reached only three feet at high tide. A
hurricane in 1938 filled the narrow channel with

sand, joining Deer Island to Point Shirley and the
mainland. In 1941 the U.S. Army built Fort Dawes
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HOME FOR THE UNWANTED

During King Philip's War of 1675­
1676, the Massachusetts Bay Colony
began using Deer Island to house
society's unwanted. In a panic caused by the war,
about 500 Christian Native Americans friendly to
the colonists were removed from their villages and
sent to the island, where many died after a cold
winter with inadequate food and shelter. Later in
the war, some of the Christian Indians joined the
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as part of the coastal defense initia­
tive for Boston Harbor, and a road

was constructed for easy access to the
site. The name "Deer Island" became
a misnomer.

The City of Boston was granted
the "fine game preserve" of Deer
Island for £2 a year in 1634 by the
province of Massachusetts. In 1636
Bostonians were permitted to cut
wood on Deer Island, a custom that

continued even after the city leased
the island to a series of owners

beginning the next year. At one time
revenues from woodcutting funded
Boston Latin School.
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great that a receiving room was constructed at
Long Wharf where these refugees could wait for
transportation to hospitals. On June 8 of that year
a quarantine hospital was established on Deer
Island by the Massachusetts Legislature "as a
precautionary measure to ward off a pestilence

DEER ISLAND HAS BEEN HOME TO NATIVE AMERICANS,

QUARANTINED IMMIGRANTS, CRIMINALS, ORPHANS,
PAUPERS AND MILITARY PERSONNEL.

colonists in battle against other tribes. The survi­
vors - mostly women, children and old men ­
were returned to their villages "in honor." Other
Indians were imprisoned on Deer Island after the
war, then sold into slavery in the West Indies.

Many died on Deer Island in the first two
centuries of the new colony. Bodies of Indians,
inmates, immigrants, patients and residents of
island institutions, unclaimed by families or
friends, were laid to rest in unmarked graves.

Deer Island was first designated as a harbor
quarantine station in 1677 when passengers of an
arriving ship were found to have smallpox and
were housed there in temporary quarters. It was
reestablished as a quarantine/hospital again in the
1840s during the height of the Irish famine, which
caused thousands of Irish to flee their native land.

In 1847 nearly 25,000 immigrants arrived in
Boston. The numbers of ill and dying were so

that would have been ruinous to the public health
and business of the city."

Between 1847 and 1849,4,816 Irish

immigrants were admitted to the island. Of this
number, 4,069 were ill upon arrival. Most of the
759 who died were buried in the old Resthaven

Cemetery on the island's southern portion. In 1908
the remains from the old Resthaven Cemetery
were reinterred at a new location (the New

Resthaven Cemetery) on the north side of the
island above the prison in order to make way for
an expanded military reservation. The last burials
on Deer Island took place in 1946.

In 1990, several unmarked graves in the
vicinity of the New Resthaven Cemetery were
disturbed by construction. MWRA conducted an
archaeological investigation of the site and
protected the remaining graves. When construction
is completed in 1999, MWRA plans to restore and




